
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

April 1, 2020 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 615 950 666 

Password: 542563 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

A. Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Marty Kelsey 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action) Taylor Jones 

III. Message From President Taylor Jones 

IV. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

V. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

VI. Old Business  Taylor Jones 

A. Outstanding – Not Ready for Board Consideration (Placed on the agenda as a reminder of 
uncompleted business) 

1. Credentialing Criteria (presented following approval of new medical staff bylaws) 

VII. New Business  Taylor Jones  

A. COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery 

1. Incident Command Team Presentation Kim White, Incident Commander 

B. Charters  

1. Building & Grounds Committee Ed Tardoni 

2. Compliance Committee Barbara Sowada 

3. Executive Oversight & Compensation Richard Mathey 

4. Finance & Audit Committee Marty Kelsey 

5. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

6. Human Resources Committee Ed Tardoni 

7. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

 VIII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 
  

1/112



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

April 1, 2020 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 615 950 666 

Password: 542563 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

IX.     Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

B. Human Resources Committee  Ed Tardoni 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Marty Kelsey  

1. Bad Debt (For Action)  

March Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Ed Tardoni 

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Barbara Sowada 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Richard Mathey 

I. Joint Conference Committee Richard Mathey 
 
X.    Contract Review                Suzan Campbell, General Legal Counsel 

A. Contract Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Varian 

XI. Medical Staff Report Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen 

 A.  Threshold Criteria and Practice Plan (For Review) 

 B.  Trauma Resolution (For Action) 

XII. Good of the Order Taylor Jones 

XIII. Executive Session  Taylor Jones 

XIV. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

A. Approval of Privileges 

B. Notice of Claim 

XV. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

2/112



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/112



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

March 4, 2020 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

March 4, 2020, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and 

Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, 

Medical Staff President; and Mr. Jeff Smith, Sweetwater County Board of County Commissioners 

Liaison. 

 

Mr. Jones led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. Dr. Sowada read aloud the mission and 

vision statements. Ms. Richardson shared a mission moment. The agenda was approved. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the January 7, 2020, regular meeting as corrected (Mr. 

Kelsey made the motion to reject the notice of claim, not Mr. Jones) was made by Mr. Mathey; 

second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. The motion to approve the minutes of the January 30, 

2020, special meeting as presented was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion 

carried. The motion to approve the minutes of the February 12, 2020, emergency meeting as 

corrected (Mr. Tardoni was not in attendance) was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Mr. Tardoni abstained, and the motion carried. The motion to approve the minutes of the February 

13, 2020, special meeting as presented was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. Mr. 

Tardoni abstained, and the motion carried. The minutes of the February 27, 2020, special meeting 

as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Mr. Mathey abstained, and the 

motion carried.  

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

None. 

 

  

4/112



 

 

Minutes of the March 4, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

NEW BUSINESS 

There were no items listed on the agenda. It was noted there are some revised charters included in 

the committee reports section. 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

Ms. Richardson said she is getting calls about Covid-19 (coronavirus) and shared information 

about what the Hospital is doing to prepare. She said the Emergency Response Team is addressing 

needs and staff are meeting in daily huddles. Ms. Richardson read aloud a statement prepared by 

Ms. Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer, and said we are using our pandemic response plan 

to address issues and prepare. We have been working to prepare for weeks. Ms. Richardson read 

suggestions for what people can do to help with protection. Dr. Cielette Karn is speaking to the 

Rock Springs Enterprise Committee on March 5. Dr. Jean Stachon from Community Health is 

speaking at the Rock Springs Chamber of Commerce luncheon March 9. Ms. Richardson said we 

want to make sure we take care of patients, staff, and our community. The Strategic Plan Retreat 

is still planned for March 26 from 8:30 AM to 12 PM at Santa Fe Trail. We will look at the first 

two years of the three-year plan. Ms. Richardson provided a strategic plan update. In the area of 

Patient Experience, we are still training the entire staff on person-centered care culture. Dr. Sowada 

and Mr. Jones have completed their training. The Trustees and Commissioner Smith are invited to 

attend a session that works in their schedule. The Patient and Family Advisory Council meet again 

March 16. We have a really good group attending and are grateful for their time and feedback. In 

the area of Quality and Safety, we continue to work with the Quality Department and continue to 

make progress. Everyone is doing a great job. In the area of Community and Growth, we are 

working on e-psychiatry opportunities. The Community Health Needs Assessment revealed the 

number one concern in our community was having more mental health and behavioral health 

services. Ms. Leslie Taylor, Clinic Director, said we identified with the community on the number 

one concern. She said we as looked at the possibility of hiring a psychiatrist, we decided telehealth 

would be our best option. Ms. Taylor thanked Mr. Rich Tyler, IT Director, for his assistance in 

identifying options. Ms. Taylor said we will start with psychiatry in the outpatient setting. She said 

we realize we have needs in the inpatient areas but hope we can help people earlier. Ms. Taylor 

reviewed the e-psychiatry agreement included in the meeting packet. She said we are looking at a 

conservative approach. Ms. Taylor said we are very excited to bring these services to our 

community. The CHNA group will discuss the many ways patients will be referred. Dr. Sowada 

confirmed people may self-refer. Ms. Taylor said we will continue to fine-tune the process. She 

said the pay coding duty is the physician’s responsibility per the contract and w will hire a clinical 

documentation improvement certified coder stationed in the clinic to assist the physician. In the 

area of Fiscal Stewardship, Ms. Richardson said she and Ms. Tami Love, Chief Clinical Officer, 

will speak with Standard and Poor’s in April. We are hoping for a favorable call. Ms. Richardson 

gave an update on six penny tax project status. She said she understands that due to a math error, 

the Commissioners took approximately $320,000 from our project to give to the City of Rock 

Springs so they can finish their priority project and that should leave enough for our priority 

project. She said if we have anything left, we can put that toward our second project. Mr. Kelsey 

and Mr. Mathey said their understanding is the money came from the additional $600,000 that was 

to go to the Hospital. Mr. Jones said he was told there is a real benefit to bonding. He said he wants 

to learn more details on that process. Ms. Richardson said we bonded both times in the past and 

we benefitted both times. Ms. Richardson thanked the Commissioners for their continued support 

5/112



 

 

Minutes of the March 4, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

of the Hospital. She said we are within the window for The Joint Commission survey. Our survey 

readiness group is meeting and reviewing all requirements. Ms. Richardson said we are getting 

closer to opening a walk-in clinic. Ms. Taylor has been asked to report to the Board on progress at 

the April meeting. Ms. Richardson said we continue to look at a new electronic health record 

option. She said our goal is to include this in the FY21 budget. We are working on budget and they 

are due to senior leadership by early April. Ms. Richardson asked the Trustees to note some 

upcoming education opportunities: 

 Wyoming Hospital Association Trustee and CEO Conference will be April 30 in 

Cheyenne, not in May in Thermopolis as previously noted 

 September 1 – 3 Wyoming Hospital Association Annual Meeting in Casper 

Ms. Richardson and Ms. Suzan Campbell, General Legal Counsel, participate in weekly legislative 

update telephone calls with the Wyoming Hospital Association leadership and CEO’s. Ms. 

Campbell will provide a report to the Board at the April meeting. The Health Fair is Saturday, 

March 7 from 9 AM to 12 PM. Ms. Richardson said we will honor our doctors on March 31. The 

Board is invited to help us show our appreciation to the medical staff at a celebration at 6 PM at 

Santa Fe Trail. Ms. Richardson said several leaders and Dr. Sowada will attend the University of 

Utah annual symposium March 30 and 31. She said a group of physician leaders, hospital leaders, 

and trustees will attend a Governance Institute leadership conference in Scottsdale April 26-29. 

Ms. Richardson said the meeting packet contains a request for a 3D mammogram unit. She said 

we had a joint with the Foundation Board the prior week. They agreed to purchase the 3D mammo 

unit for the Hospital. Ms. Richardson said she thinks it is the best thing to happen for our Hospital, 

our community, and our patients. We are all working together and this truly is great news. Ms. 

Richardson thanked Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Director, and the Foundation Board of 

Directors for their support. Mr. Jones said we have been headed in this direction for several years. 

The request was tabled due to lack of funds and it was tough to do that knowing the equipment 

was needed. Mr. Jones thanked the Foundation and thanked everyone at the Hospital for putting 

us in a position to be able to do this. Mr. Jones asked everyone to please send a note of thanks to 

Ms. Marshall to forward to the Foundation Board and spread the word in the community that we 

are getting there. Ms. Richardson thanked everyone for all they are doing.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Quality Committee 
 

Dr. Sowada said the minutes are in the meeting packet. She said the Committee spent the last 

meeting reviewing in preparation for the work on the charter. Dr. Sowada said the charter is not 

ready for review yet. She said the Quality Department are constantly reviewing records to make 

sure we are covering all aspects. The Community Health Needs Assessment is something moving 

into the quality arena. Another dimension coming on-line is consumerism, the quality things the 

Hospital has in place to make patients want to come here. She said that includes patient navigation, 

care transition, etc. Dr. Sowada said, “hats off to staff,” Ms. Richardson and senior leadership. She 

said it’s an impressive amount of work they do every month. Mr. Jones said the work is showing 

impressive results. He said he is not sure if we have ever seen quality scores before like we are 

seeing now. Dr. Sowada reviewed briefly some history regarding patient satisfaction scores. Mr. 

Jones said we appreciate everything being done in the area of quality. They are showing good 

planning and good follow thru. 

 

6/112



 

 

Minutes of the March 4, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said his comments and statistics are in the meeting packet. He said the Committee 

adopted some rewording for the charter. He expects a final will be to the Board in April. Mr. 

Tardoni asked for direction from the Board regarding an assignment and a subcommittee formed 

to review a revision of the appeals process. Mr. Kelsey said the issue is not a Board or Human 

Resources policy, it is strictly in the purview of the Board of Trustees. He said the Board attorney 

wants to discuss the issue with the Board of Trustees. In the past, it was thought that what was on 

the books would work fine. Mr. Kelsey said Mr. Jim Phillips, Legal Counsel, thinks we need to 

make changes. That discussion is not part of a Human Resources policy, it is a Board function to 

review. The Board agreed the related piece that is a policy will go through the Human Resources 

Committee. The rules of practice will be reviewed by the Board of Trustees after the policy is 

complete.  

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Capital Expenditure Requests: The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY20-36 for 

budgeted equipment used in gallbladder procedures for $29,741.44  as presented was made by Mr. 

Kelsey; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. The motion to approve capital expenditure request 

FY20-37 for purchase of a PACS software upgrade as presented for $53,650 as presented was 

made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. The motion to approve capital 

expenditure request FY20-38 for a 3D mammography machine as presented was made by Mr. 

Kelsey; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. Mr. Kelsey noted the Foundation graciously 

approved to pay for the machine. The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY20-40 for 

the replacement of our wireless network for $119,302 as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; 

second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried.  

 

Narratives: Ms. Love reviewed the narrative highlights included in the meeting packet. She 

reported we are developing plans to improve our self-pay process. Mr. Kelsey said the presentation 

to the Committee was well-done, thanked the staff for their efforts, and said this is a great step in 

the right direction to examine what we are doing. Dr. Sowada said quality and finance really 

overlap in the area of consumerism. Mr. Kelsey said the Committee approved the charter in the 

Committee packet and he feels it is ready for Board approval at the next meeting. 

 

Bad Debt:  The motion to approve the net potential bad debt for January of $746,841.32 and 

February of $837,320.30 as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion 

carried.   

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said his comments are in the meeting packet. Ms. Love said Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities 

Director, had an off-site meeting and asked her to provide a brief update. She said the steel is up 

for the central plant and we had a successful water shutdown to tie in the chilled water. Mr. Tardoni 

said they removed the word “represent” from the charter and it is presented for approval next 

month. Mr. Kelsey asked how our contractor is doing. Mr. Tardoni gave a brief update and said 

the contractor seems to be doing well. Two of our staff and the engineer are looking at the schedule. 

The contractor says we are on-schedule. Mr. Tardoni said our group wants to ensure that. Overall, 

7/112



 

 

Minutes of the March 4, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

he said he would say the engineer and contractor are performing well and it is going about like any 

construction project.  

 

Foundation Board 

 

Ms. Marshall said there was a joint meeting between the Foundation Board and Hospital Board 

the prior week. She reported the Gala in February had record numbers in attendance, sponsorship, 

and donated items. She said we raised $163,000 which is up $20,000 from the prior year. Ms. 

Marshall thanked Ms. Leah Lassise, Executive Chef and Nutrition Services Director, all of the 

event volunteers and guests. She said 16 hospital departments donated items for the event. Mr. 

Jones thanked everyone who gave items. Ms. Marshall thanked the Board for their donation to the 

live auction. Mr. Jones also thanked the Trustees for their contributions and support. Ms. Marshall 

said the Foundation Board loses two of their members this year, one in July and one in November, 

and they are looking for new members. The Foundation Board Annual Support Committee is 

meeting. Mr. Jones thanked the Foundation Board on behalf of the Board of Trustees for the gift 

of the 3D mammogram machine. He said we appreciate that huge decision.  

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the minutes and the charter are in the meeting packet for review. She said the 

Committee is in a building phase with a change in staff. Dr. Sowada said overall the work is going 

well.  

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the minutes and charter are in the packet for review. She said we are going to start 

the onerous task of reviewing the Board bylaws. Mr. Mathey said it is not exciting work but 

necessary work.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Mr. Mathey said the Board will review the Committee work in executive session.  

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Lauridsen said the group will be ready to meet after March 24. He said we would like to set 

up a meeting before the General Medical Staff meeting in May. Ms. Kerry Downs, Medical Staff 

Services Director, will work with Mr. Jones and Mr. Mathey to schedule the meeting. 

 

The Board took a 10-minute break. The meeting reconvened at 3:43 PM. 

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 
 

The motion to authorize the CEO to sign the contracts under the contract consent agenda as 

presented was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

  

8/112



 

 

Minutes of the March 4, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Lauridsen reported the General Medical Staff met February 25. He said the meeting was largely 

informational. Dr. Lauridsen said he is looking forward to the Joint Conference Committee 

meeting.  

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Mr. Tardoni said he attended the State Miners Board meeting in Cheyenne February 11 and 12. 

He said our County Commissioners are authorized to appoint one Board member and Campbell 

County can appoint one Board member. He said the other members are appointed by the Governor. 

At the previous session, the Board approved increases in hearing aid coverage. At the 2020 session, 

the Board increased the number of chiropractic visits covered. Ms. Richardson said she spoke with 

Commissioner Smith during the meeting break and he said $360,000 of the $600,000 allocated to 

the Hospital will be given to the City of Rock Springs with $240,000 remaining to the Hospital. 

Ms. Richardson said that is $240,000 above what was allocated to the Hospital originally. She 

thanked Commissioner Smith and the County for their support. Mr. Jones said we know we have 

the support of the County Commissioners and that is important. Mr. Jones thanked everyone for 

their hard work. He said marked improvements don’t happen by accident and said it takes a lot of 

effort, planning, and follow-thru.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into Executive Session was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion 

carried.  

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 5:06 PM, the motion to come out of executive session and into open session was made by Mr. 

Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  
 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 

 

The motion to grant privileges to healthcare professionals as discussed in executive session was 

made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from February 11, 2020  

1. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1year) 

 Dr. Michael Neyman, Hospitalist 

2. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Neal Asper, Anesthesia 

3. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Alexander Colonna, Tele ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. Marta McCrum, Tele ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. David Renner, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

9/112



 

 

Minutes of the March 4, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

 Dr. Brent Wilson, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

4. Reappointment to AHP Staff (2 years) 

 Melissa Jewell, PA-C, Family Medicine 

5. Other Business - Credentialing Leasing Providers 

 

The motion to discontinue the Board of Trustees’ practice of taking applications for hospital 

privileges from, and granting hospital privileges to, health care professionals whose sole 

connection to MHSC is leasing space from MHSC or being employed by a health care provider 

that leases space from MHSC was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

The motion to authorize the CEO to execute a physician contract as discussed in executive session 

was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:08 PM.   

 

 

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

10/112



Building & Grounds Committee Charter Page 1 
 

Board Charter: The Building & Grounds Committee  

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                          

Category: Board Committees & Committee Charters 
Title: Building & Grounds Committee 
Original adoption:  October 4, 2017 
Revision: 2020 
 
            
   
  

Purpose: 
 
The purpose of the Building & Grounds Committee is to assist the Board of Trustees 
(Board) in discharging its duties in respect to protecting and maintaining the real 
properties of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital), including its off-site 
properties, in support of a safe, efficient, and aesthetic environment. 

Responsibilities: 

In fulfilling its charge, the Building & Grounds Committee is responsible for the following 
activities and functions: 

1. Monitor the functional integrity and safety of the Hospital’s real properties, 
including its off-site properties, and reports to the Board any needs for action to 
maintain or improve its real properties. 

2. Assess the needs, and governmental and regulatory mandates, to set priorities 
that support the overall mission of the Hospital for safe, efficient care. 

3. Recommend, review, and assess proposed projects and renovations. 
4. Identify future needs and improvements that are beyond normal maintenance 

activities. 
5. Monitor capital construction projects. 
6. Recommend to the Board an annual Building and Grounds plan consistent with 

the Hospital’s annual budget and strategic plan. 
 

Composition:  

The Building & Grounds Committee will consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of 
whom will function as chair person; the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officers; and 
the Director of Facilities. Each of these members shall have voting privileges. 

The Director of Facilities, at his discretion, may invite other attendees who have 
involvement with, or can contribute information about, any current issue under 

Board of Trustees Orientation and Resource Handbook 

11/112



Building & Grounds Committee Charter Page 2 
 

consideration at a meeting of the committee.  Such additional attendees will not have 
voting rights.   

Meeting Schedule: 

 
The committee shall meet monthly, or as needed. 
 

 

12/112



Compliance Committee Charter Page 1 
 

Board Charter: The Compliance Committee  

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                          

Category: Board Committees & Committee Charters 
Title: Compliance Committee 
Original adoption: 7/4/2018 
Revision: 7/25/2018; 1/29/2020 
 
            
   
  

Purpose: 
 
The purpose of the committee is to represent and assist the Board of Trustees (Board) in 
discharging its duties in respect to ensuring the compliance activities of Memorial 
Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital) are vigorous, appropriate and continuous.  

Responsibilities: 
 
In fulfilling its charge, the Compliance Committee is responsible for the following 
activities and functions:  

1. Oversee the Hospital’s compliance program and monitor its performance. 
2. Make recommendations to the Board regarding compliance practices. 
3. Ensure the Board is aware of significant compliance issues. 
4. Review compliance risk areas and the steps the Hospital has taken to assess, 

control, and report such compliance risk exposures. 
5. Review monthly reports of compliance audits to assess the appropriateness 

of audit activity. 
6. Ensure the Hospital has all applicable policies related to compliance with 

state and federal regulations. 

 
Composition 
 
The Compliance Committee will consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of whom 
will function as chair person; the Chief Executive Officer, General Legal Counsel, and 
Compliance Officer. Each of these members shall have voting privileges.  

 
Meeting Schedule 
The committee shall meet monthly, or as needed. 
 

 

Board of Trustees Orientation and Resource Handbook 

13/112



Executive Compensation Committee Charter Page 1 
 

Board Charter: The Executive Oversight and Compensation 
Committee  

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                          

Category: Board Committees & Committee Charters 
Title: Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 
Original adoption: June 14, 2010 
Revision: 2017 
 
            
   
  

Purpose: 
 
The purpose of the committee is to assist the Board in discharging its duties in respect to 

conducting annual goal-setting, evaluation, and compensation review, in accordance 
with board policy, for the Chief Executive Officer; and in respect to establishing the 
compensation range of other Chief Officers. 
 

 
Responsibilities: 
 
The Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee is responsible for the following 
activities and functions: 
 

 Annually evaluates the performance of the CEO using performance expectations 
and specific goals, mutually agreed upon at the beginning of the evaluation 
cycle, and reports the results back to the full Board.  

 Develops, with input from the full Board  and the CEO, clear and comprehensive 
annual performance expectations, which are related to the hospital’s mission 
and its strategic success in these four (4) areas—financial, quality, service, and 
people—and states how the expectations are tied to compensation. For each of 
the four areas, specific annual performance goals may be set, each of which is 
tied to an economic bonus calculated as a percentage of the CEO’s base salary. 
Goals shall be mutually established by the committee and the CEO, and shall be 
in writing. The total bonus shall not exceed twenty percent (20%) of base salary. 
Goals must be approved in advance by the Board. 

 Meets quarterly with the CEO to review progress toward meeting the hospital’s 
strategic and tactical priorities and goals and responses to unplanned change. 

 Recommends policies and processes to the Board for the regular and orderly 
review of the performance, compensation, and development of the CEO. The 
processes shall include provisions for input from the full Board and a report to 

Board of Trustees Orientation and Resource Handbook 

14/112



Executive Compensation Committee Charter Page 2 
 

the full Board on the results of the evaluation and compensation review by the 
full Board.   

 Develops the job description for the CEO, including responsibilities, as well as 
education and experience requirements. 

 Adheres to the Board’s compensation philosophy and written policies, including 
Board Policy EOC-3-2011 and No. 1-6.1.11, as amended from time to time by the 
full Board, that reflect the charitable, tax-exempt mission of the hospital and are 
in compliance with all Federal and State regulations. 

 Periodically reviews for reasonableness and competitiveness salary, benefits, 
and other forms of compensation for the hospital’s Chief Officers and, if 
appropriate, recommends for consideration by the Board, changes. 

 Directs the CEO to prepare and annually update a CEO and other chief officer 
succession and management development plan to be reviewed with the 
committee and reported to the Board.  
 

Composition 
 
The committee shall consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of whom is the Chair 
of the Board and shall serve as committee chair. The other one (1) may be the Chair of 
the Quality Committee, the Chair of the Finance and Audit Committee, or another Board 
member. In any event, written input from the Chairs of the Quality and Finance and 
Audit Committees will be included in annual performance review. The CEO attends 
committee meetings by invitation. 
 

Meeting Schedule 
 
The committee shall meet quarterly, or as needed. 
 
 

15/112



Finance & Audit.ag15 Page 1  

Board Charter for Finance & Audit Committee 
 

 
Category: Finance and Audit Committee 
Title: Finance and Audit Committee 
Original adoption: June 14, 2010 
Revision: 2020 

 
 
 
Purpose 

 
The purpose of the Finance and Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Trustees 
(Board) in its fiduciary and oversight duties as set forth below. 
 
Authority 

  The committee has no expressed or implied power or authority. 
 
Responsibilities 

 
In fulfilling its charge, the Finance and Audit Committee is responsible for the 
following activities and functions: 

• Reviews, monthly, the financial status of the hospital and reports to the Board. 
• Reviews the fiscal year operating and capital budgets of the hospital prepared by Senior 

Leadership; makes recommendations to the Board regarding approval of said budgets. 
• Monitors the overall financial performance and risk of the hospital in light of approved 

budgets, long term trends, and industry standards. 
• Reviews on a regular basis hospital financial statements. 
• Reviews and recommends to Board all Capital purchases > $25,000.00. 
• Recommends to the Board policies designed to strengthen the financial health of the 

hospital and clinics. 
• Recommends to the Board key financial objectives to be established and monitored. 
• Reviews hospital investments; makes recommendations to Senior Leadership as 

deemed desirable. 
• Monitors the hospital’s debt obligations; reviews borrowing initiatives proposed by 

Senior Leadership; makes recommendations to the Board as deemed necessary. 
• Reviews the Board’s policy regarding financial assistance for the poor and uninsured, in 

compliance with State statute 18-8-106. 
• Provides oversight over external auditing matters by: 

o Reviews the Board’s external auditing policy; recommends changes if deemed 

Board of Trustees Orientation Resource Handbook 

16/112



Finance & Audit.ag15 Page 2  

necessary. 
o Recommends to the Board external auditors after reviewing the composition of 

the audit team, proposed compensation, and other relevant matters. 
o May meet annually with the external auditors separate from Hospital 

management to review the annual audit and associated management letter. 
o Reviews audit findings and recommends to the Board any action plans that 

should be taken to strengthen internal controls and to otherwise improve the 
hospital’s accounting and management practices. 

o Makes other related recommendations to the Board associated with the auditing 
function. 

Composition 

The Finance and Audit Committee consists of two (2) members of the Board, including the 
Board Treasurer, who functions as Chair, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and 
Controller serve as voting members of the committee. The Chief Nursing Officer, Chief 
Clinical Officer, Director of Patient Financial Services, Director of Information Technology, 
Director of Materials Management and two (2) physicians, as appointed by the Board 
President, serve as non-voting members of the committee. 

Meeting Schedule 
Monthly; additional meetings may be called by the Committee Chair in consultation with the 
Chief Executive Officer, or as needed. 

Reports: 

The committee will receive and review the following reports, and provide the Board with an 
executive summary: 

• For Board approval: 
 Investment reports, as necessary 
 Bad Debt report 
 Annual operating and capital budget 
 Annual financial audit report and management letter 

 
• For informational purpose: 
 Financial statements 
 Key financial ratios 
 Key operating benchmarks 
 Payer trend reports 
 Quarterly bond covenant compliance letter 
 Annual Standard & Poor’s credit rating review 
 Chargemaster review summary every three years 

Note: As used herein, the term “hospital” includes the “clinics” when such 
inclusion is appropriate. 

17/112



Finance & Audit.ag15 Page 3  

 

18/112



19/112



20/112



 

Board Charter: The Human Resource Committee   
                                                                                                                                         

Board of Trustees Orientation and Resource Handbook                                                                                          NO.   

Category: Board Committees & Committee Charters  
Title: Human Resource Committee Original 
Adoption: June 14, 2010  
Revision:  September 6, 2017 
Revision: February 17, 2020 
Approved and adopted by Board of 
Trustees: 9/6/17 &  
    
                         
Purpose:  
  
The purpose of the committee is to assist the Board in discharging its duties in respect to the 
oversight of the Hospital’s Human Resources function including, but not limited to, compliance, 
classification, compensation (including total rewards), policies, employee relations and safety. 
The creation and maintenance of an organizational culture that fosters a productive and 
engaged workforce is a primary goal of the Committee. 
  
Responsibilities:  
  
In fulfilling its charge, the Human Resource Committee is responsible for the following activities 
and functions:  
  

• Assists the Human Resources Department with its charge to assure the Hospital is in 
compliance with all Federal and State labor laws, rules and regulations.  

• Reviews employee policies to help determine the reasonableness of same and to help 
determine they are in compliance with employment laws and practices; recommends 
changes to Senior Leadership, Legal Counsel and the Board as deemed appropriate.  

• Reviews, on a periodic basis, employee compensation and benefits and the total 
rewards package; recommends changes to Senior Leadership, Legal Counsel and the 
Board as deemed appropriate. 

• Works with Human Resources staff and other hospital staff as appropriate, and with 
consultants as deemed necessary, to periodically review the Hospital’s classification and 
compensation plan(s); recommends changes to Senior Leadership, Legal Counsel and 
the Board as deemed appropriate. 

• Assures that employee satisfaction/engagement surveys are conducted periodically and 
monitors the implementation of actions based there on.  

 
 

21/112



 

 Human Resource Committee Charter  Page 1  
  

Exceptional Skill. Extraordinary Care.  
  

Composition  
  
The committee shall consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of whom shall serve as chair, 
the Legal Executive/General Counsel, Chief Executive Officer and the Human Resource Director. These 
five (5) committee members shall be the voting members of the committee. Staff to this committee 
include support personnel from appropriate MHSC departments such as the Chief Nursing Officer, Chief 
Clinical Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Finance and HR, who will not have voting privileges.  
  
  
Meeting Schedule  
  
The committee shall meet quarterly, or as needed.  
  
Reports  
  
The committee will regularly receive and review the following reports, and executive summaries 
will be reported to the Board:  
  

• Comprehensive personnel turnover reports  

• Contract staff statistics by position.   
• Vacancy rates by position.  
• Unexpected sick leave rates and workers’ compensation claims.  
• Employee Engagement survey results when available  

   
 

 Human Resource Committee Charter  Page 2  
  

Exceptional Skill. Extraordinary Care.  
  

22/112



Quality Committee Charter Revised March 17, 2020 Page 1 
 

Board Charter for Quality Committee 

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                          

Category: Board Committee & Committee Charters 
Title: Quality Committee 
Original adoption: June 14, 2010 
Revision: October 4, 2017, June 6, 2018, March 17, 2020 
 
            
   

Purpose: 
The purpose of the Quality Committee (Committee) is to assist the Board of Trustees (Board) in 
its fiduciary and oversight duties regarding the delivery of safe, quality, patient-centered care as 
set forth below. 
 

Definition of Quality:  
Quality at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital) is a patient-centered 
commitment to excellence, consistently using best practices for process improvement to 
achieve the best outcomes for our patients. 
 
The Institute of Medicine (IOM) defines health care quality as “the degree to which health care 
services for individuals and populations increase the likelihood of desired health outcomes and 
are consistent with current professional knowledge.” 
 
The IOM defines the six (6) dimensions of quality as:  

1. SAFE, does not harm 
2. TIMELY, delivered without unnecessary delays  
3. EFFECTIVE, based on the best scientific knowledge currently available  
4. EFFICIENT, does not waste resources 
5. EQUITABLE, based health needs not personal characteristics 
6. PATIENT-CENTERED, respectful and customized according to patients needs and values 

 

Authority  

The committee has no expressed or implied power or authority. 

Responsibilities: 
 
In fulfilling its charge, the Committee is responsible for the following activities and functions. 
 

Board of Trustees Orientation and Resource Manual 

23/112



Quality Committee Charter Revised March 17, 2020 Page 2 
 

1. Monitors the monthly quality, safety, and patient experience reports of the Hospital 
against national benchmarks and other standards. 

2. Monitors priority-focus data as identified by the Performance Improvement and Patient 
Safety (PIPS) Committee. 

3. Monitors the summary quality, safety, and patient experience reports provided 
pursuant to provisions of clinical service contracts.  

4. Monitors the summary quality, safety, patient experience reports of the Hospital’s 
medical directors and department chairs.  

5. Reviews all Serious Safety Events, as defined by the Hospital, the National Quality 
Forum, Wyoming Department of Health, and The Joint Commission, and subsequent 
improvement plans made in connection therewith.  

6. Monitors the effectiveness of project and committee leaders’ improvement plans with 
regard to negative variances and serious errors.  

7. Reviews the Hospital’s annual PIPS Plan (Plan) and recommends the Plan to the Board 
for its approval.1 

8. Advocates that quality and cost are appropriately inter-related and that the Hospital’s 
culture and resources are sufficient to support efforts to improve quality, safety, and 
patient-centered care.  

9. Recommends organizational strategy regarding the delivery of safe, patient-centered, 
quality care as aligned with the Hospital’s strategic plan. 

10. Works with Senior Leadership to help assure that major new programs, service 
additions, or enhancements have met specific quality-related performance criteria, 
including, but not limited to, volume, staffing and accreditation requirements. 

11. Recommends Board level policies regarding the delivery of safe, patient-centered, 
quality care, as needed. 

12. Recommends education programs to the Board. 
 

Composition 

The composition of the Committee shall be as follows: two (2) Board members, one of whom to 
serve as Chair, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Medical Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Nursing Officer, Chief Clinical Officer, Clinic Director, Quality Director, and not more than two 
physicians as appointed by the Board President. Each of these members shall have voting 
privileges. 

The Chair may invite any director, officer, staff member, expert or other advisor who is not a 
member of the Committee to attend, but these individuals have no voting privileges. 

Meetings should be attended by the staff of the Quality Department and the Infection 
Prevention, Risk and Compliance Director. These individuals shall not have voting privileges. 

 

                                                           
1 WY Stat 35-2-910 (a). 

24/112



Quality Committee Charter Revised March 17, 2020 Page 3 
 

Meeting Schedule 

The Committee shall meet monthly, and as needed. 

Reports 

The Committee will regularly receive and review the following reports. 

1. The monthly quality, safety, and patient experience reports of the Hospital 
2. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid quarterly and annual reports    
3. Serious Safety Events, as they occur 
4. Root Cause Analysis (RCA) and Failure Mode and Effects Analysis (FMEA) reports 
5. Environment of Care reports, biannually and annually 
6. Progress on performance improvements and/or safety goals as aligned with identified 

priority areas in the PIPS Plan and/or other priorities identified by the PIPS Committee in 
action plan format  

7. The annual PIPS Plan 
8. The results of the biennial Culture of Safety survey 
9. Accreditation reports when received 
10. Audits of credentialing process at least every two (2) years2 
11. Audits of peer review, ongoing professional practice evaluations (OPPE), focused 

professional practice evaluations (FPPE) monitoring, annually3 
12. Audits of clinical contract quality and safety review, annually 
13. Audits of medical directors’ quality review initiatives annually 

 

Confidentiality 

WY Stat 35-2-910. Quality management functions for health care facilities; 
confidentiality; immunity; whistle blowing; peer review. Subsection A. “Each licensee 
(hospital, healthcare facility and health services) shall implement a quality management 
function to evaluate and improve patient and resident care and services in accordance 
with the rules and regulations promulgated by the division. Quality management 
information relating to the evaluation or improvement of the quality of health care 
services is confidential. Any person who in good faith and within the scope of the 
functions of a quality management program participates in the reporting, collection, 
evaluation, or use of quality management information or performs other functions as 
part of a quality management program with regards to a specific circumstance shall be 
immune from suit in any civil action based on such functions brought by a health care 
provider or person to whom the quality information pertains. In no event shall this 
immunity apply to any negligent or intentional act or omission in the provision of care.”  

                                                           
2 WY Stat 35-2-910 (d) 
3 ibid 

25/112



Quality Committee Charter Revised March 17, 2020 Page 4 
 

Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient’s right to privacy 
and in keeping with Hospital Policy and State and Federal Regulations governing the 
confidentiality of quality and patient safety work. All quality and patient safety data 
shall be considered the property of the Hospital. 

Only aggregated data will be reported to the Committee, with two exceptions. These 
exceptions are Serious Safety Events and events that triggered Root Cause Analysis 
and/or Failure Mode Effects Analysis. De-identification of protected health information 
will be used for these reports. 

 

 

26/112



MHSC Board of Trustees Meeting  

April 2020 

Report of the CEO – April 

 

Mission Moment 

 My Mission Moment is a huge shout out to the community.  We have had such an outpouring of 

encouragement, offers to help, donations, etc. and we are so appreciative.  Our community has 

really come together and is supporting our hospital, our patients and our staff and we feel like 

they have also embraced our Mission Statement and our values with their heartfelt demonstration 

of compassion and kindness.  We are truly grateful to our community.   

Staff and Physicians 

 As we navigate through these very uncertain and challenging times, I want to mention how 

amazing our staff, physicians and leadership team are.  They are and have always been here for 

our patients and are doing everything they can to take care of our patients.  It’s an honor for me to 

be part of this very capable, kind and compassionate team. 

COVID-19 - Update 

 We have set up our Incident Command team and they have been meeting every day to create 

plans for how we will handle the pandemic wave.  This team consists of very experienced and 

highly trained individuals who know how to plan and react in emergency situations.  We are 

doing our best to slow and stop the spread of COVID-19 by reducing the number of access points 

to the hospital and our clinics and by limiting the number of visitors, vendors, and guests.  This is 

in an effort to help stop the spread and it is working. 

o Hospital inpatient areas are no longer open to visitors.  Exceptions to this include 

pediatric patients and obstetrics patients 

o For these exceptions, we continue to allow only one visitor per adult patient.  Visitors for 

a pediatric patient must be a parent or guardian.  One adult visitor is allowed per 

obstetrics patient 

o The visitor should be the same visitor for the entire duration the patient is in the OB unit 

or under pediatric care.  No visitor under the age of 18, unless they are a parent or partner 

of the patient 

 As of Thursday, March 26th, here are our testing results 

o One positive COVID-19 case in Sweetwater County 

o Total specimens sent for COVID-19 testing – 205 

o Confirmed not detected results (negative) – 52 

o Rejected specimens for testing due to weather delay – 67 

o Specimens are being sent to ARUP, LabCorp, and the State 

o Testing is being hampered by shortages of swabs and reagent 

 The swabbing station was set up the week of March 9th and our staff is doing an amazing job and 

we appreciate them!  

 We want our community to know that we are here for them.  We are doing our best to keep our 

patients, staff, physicians and community safe and healthy.  We appreciate everyone’s patience 

27/112



and understanding during these very rapidly changing times.  We encourage our community to 

physically distance themselves as much as they can, to practice good hand hygiene and to take 

care of themselves.   

Strategic Plan 

 We were supposed to have our Strategic Plan update on Thursday, March 26th at 8:30 am at Santa 

Fe; however that was postponed due to the COVID-19 outbreak.  We will schedule this for a later 

date. 

 Patient Experience – Due to the COVID-19 outbreak, we have placed our Planetree Person-

Centered Care Workshops on hold until at least the end of April.  We have canceled the Steering 

Committee in March and April and we have canceled the Patient and Family Advisory Council 

for March and April.  Cindy has provided a link to a recent Planetree webinar on person-centered 

care during pandemics to help remind us of our mission and bring us together during this 

uncertain time: https://www.planetree.org/pandemics-webinar 

 Congratulations to all the departments for their preliminary patient satisfaction scores.  Everyone 

did great, but I really want to thank Megan Jacobsen and the OB staff and Melissa Anderson and 

E/D staff and the E/D physicians as they really made huge leaps in their scores so we want to 

recognize them for that! 

 Quality and Safety – Continue to work with the Quality department to improve our processes. 

 Community and Growth – In an effort to see as many patients as we can, we have worked very 

quickly in implementing our walk-in clinic and tele-health services.  I want to thank Leslie Taylor 

and her team and all of the physicians for working so hard to make this happen!  

 Financial Stewardship – Our call with S&P will be in April.  Standard & Poor’s has followed the 

lead of Moody’s and Fitch and they have issued a negative outlook for not for profit hospitals as 

the COVID-19 outbreak develops. 

 We have a phone call with Lauren Schoenfeld next week to discuss the 6th penny project.  

Updates  

 The Joint Commission has suspended their accreditation visits to hospitals at this time.  We 

continue our work on the standards and will be ready when they are. 

 Tami and Jan have sent out reports to the leaders and we will have our budget meetings the week 

of April 13th.  

 WHA Trustee Education Program scheduled for April 30th in Cheyenne, WY was canceled due to 

COVID-19 

 The U of U Affiliate Symposium scheduled for March 30th and 31st in Salt Lake City , UT was 

canceled due to COVID-19 

 Governance Institute Conference scheduled for April 27th – April 30th in Scottsdale, Arizona was 

canceled due to COVID-19 

General 

 Our health fair was held on March 7th at 9:00 am.  It was a huge success!  I want to thank Janae 

Gale and all of the leadership team who volunteered to help, they did an amazing job! 

 Doctor’s day dinner was going to be held on Tuesday, March 31st at 6:00; however, we postponed 

it due to COVID-19.  We will let you know when we reschedule 

28/112



 

Again, I would like to thank our staff, leaders and physicians for really uniting and working together to 

keep our patients, staff and community safe.  Also, for their amazing work on the COVID-19 outbreak, 

these are people that you want taking care of you. It is times like this that show the importance of a 

community hospital – we are here now, and we will always be here for our community.  

29/112



 

  Page 1 of 2 

Confidential   3/24/2020 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

March 18, 2020 

 
  

Present:  Dr. Banu Symington Dr. Kristy Nielson, Marty Kelsey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, Irene 

Richardson, Kara Jackson, Karali Plonsky, Corey Worden, Gabrielle Seilbach, Leslie 

Taylor 

 

Absent/Excused:  Dr. Cielette Karn, Dr. Melinda Poyer, Tami Love, Kari Quickenden,  

 

Chair:   Dr. Barbara Sowada   

 

 

Mission Moment 

Ms. Richardson gave a shout out to staff during these tough times of COVID19 

 

Approval of Agenda & Minutes 

Dr. Sowada present the Agenda with the request to pull out the following items for discussion: 

ASCO update, Quality Charter, COVD19 Update, Culture of Safety Survey, and pgs. 24 and 31 

from the Consent Agenda. Dr. Sowada further requested to table the rest in light of time 

constraints, due to workloads caused by the COVID19 epidemic. Motion to approve Agenda by 

Ms. Richardson, seconded by Dr. Nielson, Agenda was approved. Motion to approve February 

19, 2020 Minutes by Ms. Taylor, seconded by Ms. Jackson, Minutes were approved. 01. 

 

Old Business 

Tabled. 

 

New Business 

ASCO updates reviewed by Dr. Symington. It was noted they will be having a virtual meeting 

tomorrow. It is under the guise of Cancer quality improvement, but could really relate to the 

entire hospital. 

 

Dr. Sowada presented the revised Quality Committee Charter, that was worked on again 

yesterday in a meeting with Ms. Richardson, Ms. Jackson, Mr. Kelsey, and Dr. Sowada herself. Dr. 

Sowada noted statutes were added and it was aligned with our Strategic Plan. Ms. Richardson 

motioned to approve, Dr. Nielson seconded, Charter was unanimously approved. The Charter 

will now go to the Board for final approval. 

 

Dr. Nielson gave an update on COVID19 Preparedness. We started meeting as soon as we 

heard about the possible epidemic, then ramped up when we started seeing patients in 

Wyoming. Since then we have set up a Triage tent, a drive through swabbing, plus prepared 

ICU as a quarantine area. We are working with Aspen Medical Facility for an additional 

ventilator, which is the same as what we use. We started restricting visitation, and continue to 

increase those restrictions. We have been testing, but ARUP ran out of testing reagent 

yesterday. As of today we have only had 2 come back, both were negative. Ms. Taylor noted 

that we have been also testing for Flu A and B, H1N1, Rhinovirus and varied other Corona type 

viruses. Starting today we are hoping to send tests to the State and are also working with Dr. Iliya 

to send test through another testing site. Currently all swabs for further COVID19 testing are 

 

30/112



 

  Page 2 of 2 

Confidential   3/24/2020 

being frozen and held until we know where we can send. Patients that are concerned they may 

have COVID19 and in the absence of test results have been advised to self-quarantine. 

 

Ms. Jackson reported on Safety survey preparations. They are working on putting together the 

questionnaire, but are waiting for roll out of survey until a less hectic time arises. 

 

Medical Staff Update 

Tabled. 

 

Consent Agenda  

Dr. Sowada questioned Pg. 24 and Ms. Jackson reviewed the information. 

 

Dr. Sowada questioned how the information from grievances and occurrences flowed up to 

Senior Leadership. Ms. Hove noted that would be the Occurrence Reporting Standard. Dr. 

Sowada requested that the standard be brought to next month’s meeting for review. 

 

Pg. 31 look it’s all blue! All stats on this page are in the blue! Ms. Jackson noted that on pg. 33 

although the ED numbers are colorful they are  continuing to show improvement. 

 

Announcements 

Tabled 

 

 

 
Meeting Adjourned   The meeting adjourned at 8:47am 

 

Next Meeting    April 15, 2020, at 08:15 am, CR 1 & 2 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

31/112



Quality Committee 

Consent Agenda Quality Summary 

March 2020 

 

Four Priority/Focus Areas (Bolded in Summary Below) 

1. ED Patient Flow 

2. HCAHPS/Patient Experience 

3. Sepsis  

4. Hand Off  

 

1) Star Rating 

a. There are seven categories within the Star Rating and they are as follows: mortality, 

readmission, safety of care, efficient use of medical imaging, timeliness of care, patient 

experience (see next bullet) and effectiveness of care. Each of these seven categories 

contain several data metrics. Data within the following categories continues to trend in 

right direction: mortality, safety of care, and readmission. Opportunities for improvement 

exist within the efficient use of medical imaging category. OP – 8: MRI Lumbar Spine 

for Low Back Pain measure is a claims based measure and we receive data annually (late 

March/early April). We are not able to replicate OP-8 (as we have in OP-10), due to the 

complexity of the measure. New Appropriate Use criteria from CMS will help improve 

this outcome. For OP-10, data was pulling incorrectly for quite some time. We have 

corrected the indicator and it appears the data is worse than previously reported. A work 

team was created to dive into the data and improvement updates will be provided at the 

meeting.  

b. Within the Timeliness of Care category, Ed-2b: ED Median Admit Decision Time to 

ED Departure Time is trending in the right direction and the goal has been met. A new 

goal has been created by this work team, and includes continuing to decrease the data 

from average of 120 minutes to 100 minutes, more to come on the improvement work 

from this team in April. Within the Effectiveness of Care category, we are seeing 

fluctuations with the data for Core Sep1 – Early Management Bundle, Severe 

Sepsis/Septic Shock. A multidisciplinary sepsis work team has been created, including 

physicians and front line staff. Initial meeting took place in December, with the process 

mapped out and gap analysis completed. Three additional meetings have occurred in 

January, February, March. Updated screening tool, standing order, and protocol form, as 

well as downtime forms, have gone live as of March 11th. Specific education has been 

provided to each department prior to go live date, in addition to required completed of 

learning modules. We continue to monitor data for Core Op - 29 Colonoscopy-follow up 

for average risk patients to ensure sustainment of improvement. Core OP-23 – Head 

CT/MRI Results for STK Pts within 45 minutes of Arrival data has decreased in January. 

This was discussed in PIPS and small team has been formed to dive into this data. 

32/112



c. Patient Experience-HCAHPS: The “Overall Inpatient HCAHPS Dashboard” is the 

survey data that affects our Star Rating and Value Based Purchasing reimbursement 

program. This survey includes OB, ICU, and Med-Surg.  

i. May of 2019 - new focus on the “Overall Quality of Care” question and Key 

Driver questions that are targeted to improve overall quality of care.  Information 

and education continues to be provided to the medical staff, Leadership, and front 

line staff.  

ii. Data for Overall Quality of Care by Department 

1. ED 

a. Goal 42.2%  

b. Q1 2020* – 51.7%  

2. ICU 

a. Goal 59%  

b. Q1 2020* – 40% 

3. Med/Surg 

a. Goal 60.6% 

b. Q1 2020* - 61.9% 

4. OB  

a. Goal 71.9% 

b. Q1 2020* – 93.3% 

5. Surgery:  

a. Goal 73.1%  

b. Q1 2020* – 63.2% 

iii. *data not yet complete 

2) Risk/Safety 

a. An updated summary for Safety, Occurrence reports, Environment of Care, and Guest 

Relations will be provided in April.  

3) PI Standards 

a. Our PI Standards within the dashboard include data metrics defined by Centers for 

Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and The Joint Commission (TJC), as well as 

priorities identified by MHSC on the Quality Assessment Performance Improvement 

(QAPI) plan. Please see additional information below.  

b. % Inpatient return to surgery – represents one patient – this is an expected return to 

surgery per Director of OR 

c. Intraoperative injuries – NPOA – this represents one patient and is under review  

d. Postoperative Pulmonary Edema – NPOA – this represents one patient and is under 

review 

a. Results of resuscitation – denominator is capturing expired patients who are coded with 

CPR – double verified data.  

4) Accreditation 

a. We are currently in our Joint Commission triennial survey window. We have rebranded 

and restructured our readiness committee and had our first meeting on February 25th. 

Chapter assignments have been made and work is underway to determine our gaps in 

compliance with standards and our plan for addressing these.  

33/112



Human Resources Committee Meeting 
Monday, March 9, 2020 
3:00 PM – Classroom 5 

AGENDA 
 

Old Business  
I. Approval of minutes 
II. Turnover Report - Amber 
III. Open Positions –Amy 
IV. Review updated charter - Amber 

New Business  
V. Review of update/recommended employee policies - Marty 
VI. Committee member reports, other discussion(s) – as needed 
VII. Determination of Next Meeting Date (Auto-Scheduled for 04/20/20) 

 

34/112



DRAFT           

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting- Minutes Draft 
Monday, February 17, 2020 
Classroom 5 
 
Trustee Members Present: Marty Kelsey, Ed Tardoni.  
Members Present: Amber Fisk, Suzan Campbell.  
Guests: Amy Lucy, Ruthann Wolfe, Kristy Nielson, Tami Love, Shawn Bazzanella. 
 
Members Absent: Irene Richardson. 
 
Ed Tardoni called the meeting to order at 3:03pm. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
I. Turnover Report: 
Amber F. shared the following: 

- Overall turnover through end of January is 20% which is below the national 
average for hospitals at 26%. 

- Clinic – no turnover 
 
II. Open Positions: 
Amy L. shared the following: 

- 11 open positions; which include: 
- 8 Full time  
- 1 Part time 
- 2 PRN 
- Hard time filling Dialysis position because of required qualifications 

including CMS regulations. 
- Discussed what the Patient Financial Navigator role is, Ed will check into 

State Miners Hospital Board funding to assist Navigation employees in the 
effort to help patients with medical expenses. 
 

III. Human Resources Committee Charter:  
Marty Kelsey was the only member who submitted revision comments to other 
members. Discussion followed on the revision recommendations. Members 
agreed to have the charter redrafted with Marty’s recommendations including 
the removal of the fifth bullet. Motion to redraft and bring to March meeting for 
recommendation to the Board for approval. Ms. Fisk motioned, Mr. Tardoni 
seconded, all ayes, none opposed, motion carries.  
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Next Meeting:  
Monday, March 9, 2020. 
-Meeting adjourned.  

35/112



Top Position(s) /  Turnover 2020 %
EVS TECH 2 8%
Behavior Health Tech 1 13%
Ultrasound Tech. 1 20%
Transcriptionist 1 25%

Top Department(s) / Turnover 2020 %
EVS 2 15%
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 1 8%
ULTRASOUND 1 8%
HEALTH INFORMATION MANAGEMENT 1 8%
EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT 1 8%

Top Reasons / Turnover 2020 %
Other Employment 1 8%
Discharged 5 38%
Moving Out of Area/Relocation 1 8%
Resigned 4 31%
Retired 1 8%

Length of Service 2020 %
Less than 90 days 5 38%
91 - 365 days 4 31%
1-2 Yrs. 1 8%
3-5 Yrs. 1 8%
6-10 Yrs.
11-20 Yrs.
21-41Yrs. 2 15%
Total 13

Corrective Action % Discharged
Counseling
Verbal Warning
Written Warning
Final Written Warning 23% 100%
Administrative Leave

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
2020 Overall  Turnover Data (As of 02/29/2020)

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%

0

5

0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%
16%

EV
S

BE
HA

VI
O

RA
L

HE
AL

TH

U
LT

RA
SO

U
N

D

HE
AL

TH
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T

EM
ER

G
EN

CY
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T

0

5

EVS TECH

Behavior Health Tech

Ultrasound Tech.

Transcriptionist

36/112



536

Separations
New 

Employees
January 4 4 536

February 9 6 533
March

April
May
June
July

August
September

October
November 2%
December

Total 13 10

Overall Turnover
Separations 2009 96

Involuntary 5 2010 98
Voluntary 8 2011 79

Total 13 2012 104
2013 113
2014 88
2015 97

Classifications 2016 86
RN 1 2017 116

Classified 12 2018 96
Total 13 2019 93

2020 13

Rolling 12 Separations %
Jan 19 - Jan 20 109 20%
Feb 19 - Feb 20 107 20%

2020 Separations - Hospital Wide

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

0

50

100

150

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Overall Turnover 2009 - 2019

Series1

37/112



Top  Position(s) /  Turnover 2020 %
Clinic Collections Clerk/Recep 1 1%

Top Reason(s) / Turnover 2020 %
Resignation
Discharged 1 100%

Length of Service 2020 %
Less than 90 days 1 100%
91 - 365 days
1-2 Yrs.
3-5 Yrs.
6-10 Yrs.
11-20 Yrs.
21-30 Yrs.
Total 1

Counseling
Verbal Warning
Written Warning
Final Written Warning 1% 100%
Disciplinary Suspension

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY - CLINIC DATA
2020 Clinic Turnover Data (as of 02/29/2020)

Corrective Action

0

5

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

0%

100%

Discharged

0%

50%

100%

150%

Counseling Verbal
Warning

Written
Warning

Final Written
Warning

Disciplinary
Suspension

Clinic Collections
Clerk/Recep

38/112



2020 Separations - Clinic

Separations
New 

Employees
Total 

Employees 110
January 0 0 110

February 1 1 110
March

April
May
June
July

August
September

October
November
December

Total

Separations Overall Turnover
Involuntary 0 2014 20 26%

Voluntary 1 2015 11 18%
Total 1 2016 16 14%

2017 26 23%
2018 13 12%

Classifications 2019 6 5%
RN 0

Classified 1
Total 1

Rolling 12 Months 
Jan 19 - Jan 20 7 6%
Feb 19 - Feb 20 8 7%

6%

6%

7%

7%

8%

Jan 19 - Jan 20 Feb 19 - Feb 20

Rolling 12 months

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

0
5

10
15
20
25
30

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Overall Turnover

39/112



Job Title Req # Hiring Manager Department Schedule Shift Hours

Clinical

Lab Asst / Phlebotomst I 2542 Mary Fischer LABORATORY Regular Full Time Variable variable

Medical Assistant 2531 Leslie Taylor CLINIC Regular Full Time Variable

Reg. Resp. Therapist 2359 Crystal Hamblin CARDIOPULMONARY Regular Full Time Variable

SLP Lab T-Gist/Rpsgt 2360 Crystal Hamblin SLEEP LAB Regular Full Time Nights

Ultrasound Tech. 2515 Tracie Soller ULTRASOUND Regular Full Time Variable

Non-Clinical

Clin Collections 

Clerk/Recept

2537 Leslie Taylor CLINIC Regular Full Time Variable

Clinic Certified Coder/Biller 2538 Leslie Taylor CLINIC Regular Full Time Variable

Collections Clerk 2507 Ron Cheese PATIENT FINANCIAL 

SERVICES

Regular Full Time Variable M-F 12:00PM - 8:30PM

Dietary Aide 2503 Leah Lassise NUTRITION 

SERVICES

PRN Rotating

Laundry Worker 2529 Corinna Rogers LAUNDRY & LINEN Regular Part 

Time

Variable variable

Laundry Worker 2532 Corinna Rogers LAUNDRY & LINEN Regular Full Time Variable variable

Outpatient Coder 2526 Brittany Griffin HEALTH 

INFORMATION 

MANAGEMENT

Regular Full Time Days 7:30-4:00

Nursing

Care Transition Nurse 2535 Leslie Taylor CLINIC Regular Full Time Variable

Peritoneal Dialysis RN 2502 Amber Fisk DIALYSIS Regular Full Time Days Variable

Registered Nurse - Clinic 2541 Amber Fisk CLINIC Regular Full Time Variable

Registered Nurse - Clinic 2536 Leslie Taylor CLINIC Regular Full Time Variable

 All Active Facility;  All Active Department;  All Active ; Recruiters:All; Hiring Manager:All; JobStatus:Active - Posted; Optimize To Print:No; Display Job Summary:No; Custom Fields:No Custom 

Fields; Dates:6/1/2019 To 3/7/2020 

40/112



 

Board Charter: The Human Resource Committee   
                                                                                                                                         

Board of Trustees Orientation and Resource Handbook                                                                                          NO.   

Category: Board Committees & Committee Charters  
Title: Human Resource Committee Original 
Adoption: June 14, 2010  
Revision:  September 6, 2017 
Revision: February 17, 2020 
Approved and adopted by Board of 
Trustees: 9/6/17 &  
    
                         
Purpose:  
  
The purpose of the committee is to assist the Board in discharging its duties in respect to the 
oversight of the Hospital’s Human Resources function including, but not limited to, compliance, 
classification, compensation (including total rewards), policies, employee relations and safety. 
The creation and maintenance of an organizational culture that fosters a productive and 
engaged workforce is a primary goal of the Committee. 
  
Responsibilities:  
  
In fulfilling its charge, the Human Resource Committee is responsible for the following activities 
and functions:  
  

• Assists the Human Resources Department with its charge to assure the Hospital is in 
compliance with all Federal and State labor laws, rules and regulations.  

• Reviews employee policies to help determine the reasonableness of same and to help 
determine they are in compliance with employment laws and practices; recommends 
changes to Senior Leadership, Legal Counsel and the Board as deemed appropriate.  

• Reviews, on a periodic basis, employee compensation and benefits and the total 
rewards package; recommends changes to Senior Leadership, Legal Counsel and the 
Board as deemed appropriate. 

• Works with Human Resources staff and other hospital staff as appropriate, and with 
consultants as deemed necessary, to periodically review the Hospital’s classification and 
compensation plan(s); recommends changes to Senior Leadership, Legal Counsel and 
the Board as deemed appropriate. 

• Assures that employee satisfaction/engagement surveys are conducted periodically and 
monitors the implementation of actions based there on.  

 
 

41/112



 

 Human Resource Committee Charter  Page 1  
  

Exceptional Skill. Extraordinary Care.  
  

Composition  
  
The committee shall consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of whom shall serve as chair, 
the Legal Executive/General Counsel, Chief Executive Officer and the Human Resource Director. These 
five (5) committee members shall be the voting members of the committee. Staff to this committee 
include support personnel from appropriate MHSC departments such as the Chief Nursing Officer, Chief 
Clinical Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Finance and HR, who will not have voting privileges.  
  
  
Meeting Schedule  
  
The committee shall meet quarterly, or as needed.  
  
Reports  
  
The committee will regularly receive and review the following reports, and executive summaries 
will be reported to the Board:  
  

• Comprehensive personnel turnover reports  

• Contract staff statistics by position.   
• Vacancy rates by position.  
• Unexpected sick leave rates and workers’ compensation claims.  
• Employee Engagement survey results when available  

   
 

 Human Resource Committee Charter  Page 2  
  

Exceptional Skill. Extraordinary Care.  
  

42/112



43/112



44/112



45/112



46/112



47/112



48/112



49/112



50/112



51/112



52/112



53/112



54/112



55/112



56/112



57/112



58/112



59/112



60/112



61/112



62/112



63/112



64/112



65/112



66/112



67/112



68/112



69/112



70/112



71/112



72/112



73/112



74/112



75/112



76/112



77/112



78/112



79/112



80/112



81/112



82/112



83/112



84/112



85/112



86/112



87/112



88/112



89/112



90/112



91/112



92/112



93/112



94/112



95/112



96/112



97/112



98/112



99/112



100/112



101/112



102/112



 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Governance Committee Meeting 

March 9, 2020 

 

Voting Members Present: Richard Mathey, Irene Richardson and Barbara Sowada 

Members Absent:  

 

Call Meeting to Order 

Richard Mathey called meeting to order at 1:00 pm. 

 

Discussion 

 

Approval of Agenda and Minutes:    

1. It was agreed that the agenda would be discussion of the Quality Charter and Old Items from last month’s 

meeting: Board Bylaws and Board policies.  

2. Minutes from last month’s meeting had already been approved by email. 

 

Old Business 

1. Record keeping. Discussed need for board policies regarding record keeping. Determined the following 

policies are needed. 

a. Policy regarding content of board packet with distinction between public content appropriate for 

the hospital’s webpage and confidential content that belongs in the board portal; 

b. Policy regarding record retention for board meetings;  

c. Policy regarding board committee meetings; 

d. Board policy regarding contracts and hospital policy regarding management of contract data base. 

e. Hospital policy regarding information management that includes timeliness of information flow to 

CEO regarding events that have high risk potential. 

2. Determined that CEO spending policy should be reviewed. 

3. Discussed need for Board policy that describes collection, analysis, display, and distribution of quality data 

and quality indicators so as to be in compliance with Wyoming State Statute regarding confidentiality 

regarding quality data and distinguishes what must be kept confidential from what CMS regards as 

publicly reported data. 

4. Began revision of Chapter 7, Section 1 of Board Bylaws. Revisions will be attached within next 2 weeks. 

5. Checked the status of review and revision of committee charters. The charters for Building and Grounds, 

Compliance, Finance and Audit, and Governance have been submitted to the Board for approval. The 

charters for Executive Oversight and Compensation, Joint Conference Committee, Quality, and Human 

Resources have not yet been submitted to the Board. 

 

New Business 

1. Quality Charter was discussed. It was decided to include Wyoming State Statue language regarding 

confidentiality and to include statement regarding CMS publicly reported data. Richard will help Barbara 

with the wording. Revisions will be attached within next 2 weeks. 

With no further business to conduct, the meeting was adjourned at 3:00 pm. 

Submitted by Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

March 12, 2020 

103/112



Quality Committee Charter Revised March 11, 2020; Mar 15,2020 Page 1 
 

Board Charter for Quality Committee 

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                          

Category: Board Committee & Committee Charters 
Title: Quality Committee 
Original adoption: June 14, 2010 
Revision: October 4, 2017 and June 6, 2018, ??? 2020 
 
            
   

Purpose: 
The purpose of the Quality Committee is to assist the Board of Trustees (Board) in its fiduciary 
and oversight duties regarding the delivery of safe quality care as set forth below.  
The purpose of the Quality Committee is to assist the Board of Trustees (Board) in its fiduciary 
and oversight duties regarding the delivery of safe, quality, patient-centered care as set forth 
below. 
Definition of Quality: “Quality at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital) is a 
patient-centered commitment to excellence, consistently using best practices for process 
improvement to achieve the best outcomes for our patients and organizational culture.” The 
Institute of Medicine (IOM defines health care quality as "the degree to which health care 
services for individuals and populations increase the likelihood of desired health outcomes and 
are consistent with current professional knowledge." 
 
The  (IOM) defines the six (6) dimensions of quality as:  

1. SAFE, does not harm 
2. TIMELY, delivered without unnecessary delays  
3. EFFECTIVE, based on the best scientific knowledge currently available  
4. EFFICIENT, does not waste resources 
5. EQUITABLE, based health needs not personal characteristics 
6. PATIENT-CENTERED, respectful and customized according to patients needs and values 

 

Authority  

The committee has no expressed or implied power or authority. 

Responsibilities: 
  
In fulfilling its charge, the Quality Committee is responsible for the following activities and 
functions: 

1.  Monitors monthly the quality, safety and patient experience reports as well as priority 
focus topics as identified by the committee.  

Board of Trustees Orientation and Resource Manual 

104/112



Quality Committee Charter Revised March 11, 2020; Mar 15,2020 Page 2 
 

2. Reviews Monitors leadership’s improvement plans with regard to negative variances 
and serious errors. 

3.  Recommends board level policies regarding the delivery of safe, patient centered, 
quality care, as needed.  

4.  Recommends organizational strategy regarding the delivery of safe patient centered, 
quality care as aligned with the organizational strategic plan. 

5. Reviews the hospital’s annual “Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) 
and Safety Plan” and makes recommendations to the Board regarding approval of said 
plan.1  

6. Reviews all Serious Safety Events, as defined by our organization, the National Quality 
Forum, Wyoming Department of Health, Joint Commission and/or other agencies along 
with improvement plans. The Quality Committee designee reports  findings to the Board 
in executive session. Reviews all Series Safety Events, as defined by the Hospital, the 
National Quality Forum, Wyoming Department of Health, and The Joint Commission 
and/or other agencies, as well as said improvement plans. 

7. Oversees Monitors compliance with quality and safety and patient-centered care 
standards. 

8.  Advocates that quality and cost are appropriately inter-related and that the hospital’s 
culture and resources are sufficient to support efforts to improve quality, safety and 
patient-centered care. and reduce costs.  

9.  Monitors summary quality, safety, and patient-centered care reports of the hospital, 
monitors summary quality, safety, and patient-centered care reports of clinical service 
contracts, and monitors medical directors’ quality, safety, and patient-centered care 
activities.Requires Assures that major new programs and/or service additions or 
enhancements have met specific quality-related performance criteria including, but not 
limited to, volume, staffing, and accreditation requirements. 

10. Recommends education programs to the Board. 

 
Composition 
 
The committee shall consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of whom shall serve 
as Chair; the Chief Medical Officer and at least one other physician; the Chief Executive 
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Nursing Officer, the Chief Clinical Officer, 
the Clinic Director, and the Quality Director. Each of these members shall have voting 
privileges. The committee chair may invite any director, officer, staff member, expert or 
other advisor who isn’t a member of the committee to attend, but these individuals 
have no voting power. 
 
Meetings should  be attended by the staff of the Quality Department and the Infection 
Prevention, Risk and Compliance Director.. These individuals shall not have voting 
privileges. 

                                                           
1 WY Stat 35-2-910 (a). 

105/112



Quality Committee Charter Revised March 11, 2020; Mar 15,2020 Page 3 
 

 

Meeting Schedule 
The committee shall meet monthly, and as needed. 
 

Reports 
 
The committee will regularly receive and review the following reports and executive 
summaries will be reported to the Board: 
 

•     The reports for quality, patient safety, and patient experience monthly. . 
 Payment adjustment program information and publicly reported quality metrics 
as made available by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 

 Serious Safety Events, as they occur. 

 Root Cause Analysis (RCA) and Failure Mode and Effects Analysis (FMEA) reports 
as they occur. 

 Environmental safety (Environment of Care) reports quarterly.  

 Progress on performance improvements and/or safety goals as aligned with 
identified priority areas in the QAPI Plan and/or other priorities identified by the 
committee monthly in action plan format. 

 Quality Assessment Performance Improvement and Safety Plan annually. 

 Culture of Safety survey biennially. 

 Accreditation reports when received. 

 Audit of credentialing process at least every two years. 

 Audit of peer review, OPPE and FPPE and focused monitoring annually.2 

 Audit clinical contract quality review annually. 

 Audit of medical directors’ quality review initiatives annually. 

 Confidentiality 
Strict confidentiality of patient and provider information shall be maintained. The information, 
data results, reports and minutes generated by committee activities will be handled in a manner 
ensuring strict confidentiality. De-identification of Protected Health Information will be used for 
all quality reports when applicable. All quality improvement documents shall be released to 
authorized individuals on a “need to know” basis only. These authorized individuals include 
members of the Board, QAPI Committee, Senior Leadership, and MEC. 

Confidentiality 

WY Stat 35-2-910. Quality management functions for health care facilities; 
confidentiality; immunity; whistle blowing; peer review. Subsection A. “Each licensee 
(hospital, healthcare facility and health services) shall implement a quality management 
function to evaluate and improve patient and resident care and services in accordance 
with the rules and regulations promulgated by the division. Quality management 
information relating to the evaluation or improvement of the quality of health care 

                                                           
2 WY Stat 35-2-910 (d). 

106/112



Quality Committee Charter Revised March 11, 2020; Mar 15,2020 Page 4 
 

services is confidential. Any person who in good faith and within the scope of the 
functions of a quality management program participates in the reporting, collection, 
evaluation, or use of quality management information or performs other functions as 
part of a quality management program with regards to a specific circumstance shall be 
immune from suit in any civil action based on such functions brought by a health care 
provider or person to whom the quality information pertains. In no event shall this 
immunity apply to any negligent or intentional act or omission in the provision of care.”  

Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient’s right to privacy 
and in keeping with Hospital Policy and State and Federal Regulations governing the 
confidentiality of quality and patient safety work. All quality and patient safety data 
shall be considered the property of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County. 

Only aggregated data will be reported to the Quality Committee, with two exceptions. 
These exceptions are Serious Safety Events and events that triggered Root Cause 
Analysis and/ or Failure Mode Effects Analysis. De-identification of protected health 
information will be used for these reports. 

 

107/112



108/112



109/112



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dear Applicant, 

 

Thank you for your interest in Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County.  If you meet the threshold 

criteria (below) then you are eligible to complete the attached application for medical staff membership 

and privileges.  If you do not meet the criteria, please provide an explanation on a separate sheet.   

 

We appreciate your interest in our organization. Thank you! 

 

Minimum Threshold Credentialing Criteria 

 

1. Applicant holds a current, unrestricted license to practice medicine in Wyoming and has never 

had a license to practice revoked or suspended by any state licensing agency. 

2. Has completed a residency program or training program: 

 a. approved by the ACGME, AOA, ADA, CCNE, HLC, CHEA, ARC-PA, or Council on 

Podiatric Medical Education, 

 b. In the specialty in which the applicant seeks privileges 

3.  Is board certified, if not board certified, must achieve board certification within seven (7) years of 

completing residency or fellowship training. 

4.  Holds a current, unrestricted DEA. 

5. Holds a current, unrestricted Wyoming Controlled Substance Registration (CSR). 

6. Has never been convicted of Medicare, Medicaid, or other governmental or private payer fraud or 

program abuse, and has never been required to pay civil monetary penalties for the same. 

7. Has never been convicted or entered a plea of guilty or no contest to a felony related to controlled 

substances, illegal drugs, insurance or health care fraud or abuse, or a misdemeanor or felony 

related to violence or abuse of a vulnerable population. 

8. Has never had employment, appointment, clinical privileges, or status as a participating provider 

denied, revoked, or terminated for reasons related to clinical competence or conduct. 

9. Has never resigned employment, appointment, or privileges during an investigation, or in 

exchange for no investigation.  

10. A Medical Staff member applying for appointment or reappointment and clinical privileges, who 

has received a final adverse decision or who has resigned or withdrawn an application for 

appointment or reappointment and clinical privileges while under investigation or to avoid an 

investigation, is not eligible to reapply to the Medical Staff for a period of five (5) years from the 

date of the notice of the final adverse decision or the effective date of the resignation or 

application withdrawal.  

 

After reviewing the above criteria, I certify that I am eligible to apply for initial appointment to the 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) Medical Staff. I understand that as a condition of 

consideration for appointment and continued appointment, any misstatement in, or omission from the 

application is grounds for MHSC to stop processing the application. If appointment has been granted 

prior to the discovery of a misstatement or omission, appointment and privileges may be deemed to be 

automatically relinquished. In either situation, there shall be no entitlement to a hearing or appeal.  

An initial applicant cannot reapply for Medical Staff membership for a period of five (5) years. 

 

Signature:         Date:    

 

Print Name:         
  

110/112



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Intended Practice Plan 

For Physicians Only 

 
Applicant name, title (please print):           

 

Clinical Specialty:             

 

Anticipated Office Address:            

 

I Will be Practicing as: Solo Practitioner  Group Practitioner  Employed Provider 

If With a Group, list Group Name:           

If solo, have you contacted anyone to assist in your coverage? Yes  No 

If Yes, Please Explain:            

               

 

I will admit patients in need of hospitalization to Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County.  Yes No 

If no, to what institution(s) will you be admitting your patients?       

               

If yes, approximately how many patients per month will you admit?       

I will perform procedures at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC).   Yes  No 

I will provide consultation at the request of other physicians at MHSC. Yes  No 

If no, please explain:             

               

 

List the physician(s) with whom you will share continuing coverage for your patients (must be physician(s) 

on active staff at MHSC in the same specialty, with similar privileges):    

               
 

I understand my answers to the above questions will be considered by MHSC and that appointment, if 

offered, will be contingent on adherence to this practice plan. 

Physician Signature:         Date:    

 

Print Name:         

111/112



 
 
 
 
 
 

TRAUMA RESOLUTION 
 
 
WHEREAS, MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY (MHSC) strives to provide 
optimal trauma care; and  
 
WHEREAS, treatment at a trauma hospital that participates in a standardized system of trauma 
care can significantly increase the chance of survival for victims of serious trauma;  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the MHSC Medical Executive Committee (MEC) that we do 
support Dr. Jamias and the Trauma Department; and  
 
 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this _______ day of March, 
2020.  
 
 
Lawrence Lauridsen, DO    Chair of the MEC  
 
_____________________________ 

 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of MHSC that we do support Dr. 
Jamias and the MHSC Trauma Department and will do all we can to provide the resources 
necessary to achieve and sustain a level IV trauma hospital designation.  
 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name this _____  day of April, 2020.      
 
 
Taylor Jones, Chair MHSC Board of Trustees  
 
 
________________________________________ 

112/112


	Agenda - April 1 2020 Mtg[7130]
	Our Mission and Vision 

	Minutes 

	Building &amp; Grounds Committee 

	Compliance Committee 

	Executive Oversight &amp; Compensation 

	Finance &amp; Audit Committee 

	Governance Committee 

	Human Resources Committee 

	Quality Committee 

	Chief Executive Officer Report 

	Quality Committee 

	Quality Committee of the Board Consent Summary March 2020
	Human Resources Committee 

	March Committee Meeting Information 
	Finance and Audit Comm March 2020 Committee Meeting Information
	Building &amp; Grounds Committee 

	Governance Committee 

	Quality Charterdraft Mar152020 with mark up
	1. Varian 
	Threshold Criteria and Practice Plan 

	Trauma Resolution 


